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Highlights

Highlights

Alexander Mining 1s an AIM listed mining company with a
reputation for strong techrical management, allied with
financial markets’ expertise and expenence.

The Company’s activities are directed towards the objective of
becoming a low cost, highly profitable and diversified mid-tier
base and precious metals mining company.

This will be achieved through a strategy combining exploration
of its existing properties, which may lead to economic
development thereof, and the acquisition of advanced projects
and producing operations.

> Metals market conditions and outlook remain favourable
> Strong cash position of £14m at 31 December 2006

> JORC Code copper resource determined for Leon Project of
6.43Mt at 0.64% copper and 17.9g/t silver, for contaned
metal of 41,100t copper and 3 7Moz silver

> Feasibility study on Leon copper project in north-west
Argentina neanng completion

> Leon regional copper exploration programme successiul In
identfying mineralised targets leading to preparation for dnling

> Encouraging inmial exploration results from Arbol Solo copper
prospect as part of Leon regional exploration programme

> Molinetes gold property iIn Peru ready for first stage exploration
> Strong access to capital markets and finance
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Overnew

Our prospects and
projects are in
environments with
attractive geology.
We are working in
partnership with
our communities to
maximimise therr
potential.

Peru - Gold, Molinetes

The presence of bonanza tugh grade goid
mineralisahon, reportedly up to several ounces per
torme, 1s being explotted by artisanal mireng actwvity

Lima

Argentina - Polymetallic, Racharte

Early stage exploration property with potential for
porphyry copper/goid mineralisabon and/or high
sulphidation epithermial gold mineralisation

Argentina - Sitver, Tnrudad

The property covers two separate exploration
llcences situated to the north and north-east of the
former La Provdencia silver mire — a sediment-
hosted epithermal siver deposit

Buenos Ares

Argentina - Copper, Leon

Favourably situated i the central part of the Salta
Province of north-west Argentina, and just 55km
south-east of the provincial capntal, Salta, Leon 1s
at an advanced feasibility study stage In addition,
the company has a dominant regional exploration
clams area of some 145,000 hectares Here the
short term focus 1s on driling satelite copper
deposits for potentiel processing at Leon
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Overview

We have a balanced portfolio of assets
which offer solid potential for growth.
We will continue aggressively to evaluate
our prospects and projects to determine
their optimum potential.

Our portfolio at a glance
Project Acquisiton Inttial exploration Advanced exploraton  Feasibility studies Construction Production
Leon Mine, Apentina Acquired Completed Completed Nearing completion
Leon Regronal, Argentna Acquired Commenced
Tnnidad, Argentina Acquired Commenced
Racharte Argentna Aotuired Completad
Moltnetes, Peru Acquired Planned
Property Profile Status Potential
Leon copper Copper/siver proyect with Bl Cobre Final JORC Code ndependent Sutyect to final feasibdity study and
project and B Piormo copper oxde deposits resource staternent released Advanced pemiting, the development of a
Argentina stage of feasibiity study for an open pit copper mne
rmng with heap leach, solent extraction
and glecto-winning processing plant
Leon regional Intensive exploration programme in Several mneralised ouicops already Oiscovery of copper deposits of order
copper the Salta sedimentary basin to identfied, ncluding promising Arbal of magnitude sze range 3-15Mt

exploration claims

Argentina

Tnmdad sitver
prospect
Argentna

Rachaite
polymetallic
prospect
Argentina

Mohnetes gold
prospect
Peru

discover new copper deposits
sutable for treatment at Leon and/or
as a standalone operabon

Exploraton property near to the
former siver mine, La Providencia

Property encompasses an altered and
leached porphyntc dacite body withn
a collapsed caldera

Exploration property with sigrificant
artisanal menng actmty expioting
bonanza high grade gold veins

Solo prospect, where trenching has
returned encouraging resutts Onll
testing planned

Frrst stage dnling programme
completed, results awated

Results after an intal drlling
programime were not sufficenty
positve for the Company to commit
further funds It has been decided to
solcit third party jont venture nterest

Supreme decree issued by the
government enabling purchase of
property and, pending conclusion of
community agreements, start of inibal
exploration programme

Siver deposit discovery

Seeking a junt venture partner

Delneation of a signdicant
gold deposit.
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Chaiman's statement

Matt Suichffe
Chawrman and CEO

Chairman’s
statement

| am confident that the Company

is on target to achieve its corporate
growth objective to build a low cost,
highly profitable and diversified
mid-tier base and precious metals
mining company.

it 15 with pleasure that | can report to shargholders
sgnificant progress made by the Company dunng
2006 | am confident that the Company IS on
target to achreve its corporate growth objectve to
buid a low cost, highly profitable and dversified
mid-ter basg and precious metsls mining
company This will be based on our existing
praperties, which may lead to economic
development thereof, plus the acquistion of new
prospects, proects and producing operations
importantly, our finances rerman strong, as at the
31st December, 2006 we had a cash position

of £14 Om

Extraordinanly favourable markets for base and
precious metals, and in turn mining equities,
continued to prevailin 2006 This was on the back
of the booming economeas in China and Inda,
whuch together account for 38% of the world's
population At the beginning of 2007, base metals
pnces pulled back but this has been shown to be
a hedlthy correction as pnces since have
recovered strongly Gold and siver pnces have
remaned In a powerful bull market

Dunng the year, our main efforts have been
devoted to finalisng the feasitiity study for our
most advanced asset, the Leon Copper Project n
Argentina Although our ntial optimised schedule
for completing the feasibdity study has slipped,
due to delays beyond our direct control in the
amval of the pilot plant, severat cntical and notable
milestones have been passed

We have completed the rescurce definibon dnling
programme and announced ndependently
caloulated resources to the JORC Code standard
This showed a total combined in situ copper
resource for Bl Cobore and El Plomo of 6 43Mt at
0 64% copper and 17 9/t siver, for contaned
metal of 41,100t copper and 3 7Moz siver

A pilot solvent extraction electro winning (SXEW)
processing plant was successfully commissioned
1o treat a bulk sample of run of mine {ROM) ore
We are particularly proud to say that it has
produced what we beleve 15 the first copper
cathode n Argentina Indeed, | had the honour of
presentng a special display cathode to the
Gavermnor of Salta Province
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Chaimnan’s staternent

Cash postion

£14m

The Company's year-end cash reserves

Presentation of special display copper cathode
o the Governor of Salta Province

We have recenved excelient support at a local,
provincial and natonal level Consistent with our
policy of having a social licence to operate, it 15
gratfy:ng that we have been able to source goods
and services locally and to employ tocal workers
and national professionals commensurate with our
transibon towards potential ming development

In paralel with conduicting the Leon feasibility
stucly we have taken the opporturity to optimise
our regional land holding in the highly prospective
Salta Basin The taking out of additional land
clams now means that we have a dorminant
prospectve land posibon of some 145,000
hectares for copper mineralisation Accordingly,
we have been actvely searching for potertsal
Leon satelite or standalone regional copper
deposits Several promising targets have been
generated and exploraton programmes will gear
up dunng 2007

At the Compary's other prospects n northwest
Argentina, we completed an initial diarnond
dnlfing programme at the Racharte potymetallic
porphyry target property, and commenced
diarmond dnlting at Tnnidad for siver mineralisation
Resuits from the former were inconclusive in the
context of a deceion to commit further funds on
our own and we hope to be able o secure ajoint
venture partner At Tnnidad we expect to
announce results soon

In northern Peru at Molinetes, we have receved
the Suprema Decrees allowing us to purchase this
hghly exciing gold property Artisanal miners
have been active due to reported spectacular
bonanza gold grades and we look forward to
staring exploraton  Resuits from dnlling at the
Sulcha gold prospect n Otuzeo Province were
disappointing and we have refinquished our
nterest in the property

Cutlook

Market sentment and fundamentals ook highly
favourable for another rewarding year and beyond
for the muining industry and rvestors With the
standard of lving in China and india roughly a fifth
and one tenth respectively of that of the high
INCome countnes, this bodes well for the pace of
therr economic growth to continue at exceptional
levels for many years to come

Qur preference for seeking exposure to copper,
gold and siver appears well placed All are
enjoying strong current pnce levels, with healthy
outlooks, which should allow an exceptional return
on capital for good quality projects Consistent
with our business obyective we have investigated
numerous rew opportunites The challenge has
been 1o find those which are value accretve na
market where vendor expectations are often
unrealistic Nevertheless, we remain confident that
we wil be successid

In the prevaiing ndustry emvironment, where itis
increasingly dificult 1o secure high quality
professionals, we are partcularty forturate to have
recrutted a first class mine building and operating
tearm n Argentina This gives us the capability to
grow into a significant minng company

The Comparty pndes tself on the quality of all of #s
employees and | would ke to thank them and my
fellow directors, consultants and adwisors for their
dedicabon and support We look forward to the
year ahead with consideralble optmism

Matt Sutcliffe
Charman ang CEQ

26th Apnl 2007
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The Leon project in
northwest Argentina is
a sediment-hosted,
stratabound copper/
silver deposit that is at
the advanced feasibility
study stage.

Key
Project Site
Regional Arport
Town
Road
SAN SALVADOR DE JUJUY River
Alexander Mining Project Clams

Alexander Minng Regronal Exploration Claims

Land over 4,000 ft
Land over 1,500 ft
Grl. Guemes
25 50 Kilometres
SALTA
LEON
Metan
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Business review

The principal activity of
Alexander Mining is to
become a low cost,
highly profitable and
diversified mid-tier base
and precious metals
mining company.

A mevew of the Company’s business, ncluding
prospects, 1s given In the Charrman’s Statement
and below

Argentina

Mining ndustry interest, actmty and iInvestrment n
Argentina continues to accelerate from already
healthy levels According to recent govermment
figures, iInvestment has ncreased several fold over
the last few years and 1s forecast to total well over
UsS$5bn in the next five years Total mining exports
should reach US$2bn for 2008, a thind up on
2005 Complementing these figures, exploration
actmty has grown significantly too

The government forecasts that the number of the
country’s existing world class mines will increase
significantty over the next exght years Notable
projects Inciude Xirata's Bl Pachon 700Mt
copper/molybxdenurn project, Barnck Gold's
Pascua Lama 18 3Moz gold & siver project,
Northern Onon's Agua Rica 73 1Mt copper/gold
project and Rio Tinto's US$750m Potasio Rio
Colorade potash project

Wa believe that Argentina offers a favourable
environment for mming investment as the
highkghts above show However, 118 mportant to
note that the country compnses 23 provinces that
have ther own constiutions and poliics but exast
under a federal system In a few nstances, this
has led to some provinces adopting an anti-minng
stance or restnctive provincial legslation The
Company has been mindful of confining ts
actmties to those provinces that are highly
supportive towards the mining ndustry, in
partcutar Salta and Juuy

Leon

Al mining companies have to balance potential
rewards against the nsks, whether these ans
technical, market, financial, environrental or
geopolitcal The risk profile in the mineng industry 1s
gradated from exploration (highest) through 1o
production (lowest), with degrees for the stages n
hetwesn The Company adopts a prudent
approach to reduce or mitigate thess nsks as far
as possible by a mixture of prospects and/or
proects at these different stages Hence, dunng
2008, the company's efforts and expenditure have
been concentrated on progressing the Leon
copper project feasibilty study

Favourably situated in the central part of the Salta
Province of north-west Angentina, approximately
1,250km north-west of Buenos Ares and just
55km south-east of the provincial capital, Salta,
{he project has been dmwded into two separate
enttes These are the pnncipal mming clams
compnsing the Leon feasibiity study area, and the
regonal exploraton claims, which compnses the P
and S blocks, some 30 to 50km to the north-east,
and the addiional regional exploration clams area
The total area cumently compnses 144,705
hectares, of which 143,505 hectares {Leon
Regional Project) are outside of the onginal L.eon
area

Access to the main Leon project site 1s excellent
via paved national hughways for most of the way
and then some 18km of good quality gravel road

Geology

The Lecn deposit hes within and near to the
eastem border of the magor Upper Cretaceous to
Eocere Salta Basin, which covers much of north-
west Argentina and extends into parts of Chile,
Bolva and southermn Peru Dunng its formation,
the basin was filed with Cretaceous Prrgua Sub-
group sediments which attaned a thickness of
over 3 km in the vicinty of the Leon licence This
was followed by the deposition of the Pirgua Sub-
group, conssting of red mudstones, sandstones
and conglomerates with local nft-related alkalne
basaltic rocks The overtying Cretaceous Balbuena
Sub-group contans the Lecho, Yacoraite and
Tunai formations, which autcrop at the Leon site

Mineralisabion at Leon lies at the south-eastern
end of a maor fault zone, which 1s one of several
regional-scala, north-west frending lineaments
traversing north-west Argentina and the Andes
The mineralisation 15 beleved to have entered into
the sedimentary beds dunng a penod of basin
wwersicn, when there was major faulting and
north-west folding in the area

Major mvestment

US$5bn

Amount forecast to be invested
in the next five years In mining
projects in Argentina

The two main deposits discovered to date at Leon
are called El Cobre and El Plomo They were
formed around the contact of the Yacorate
Imestone and the Lecho sandstone Limestones
In the area are the most resistant rocks and
generally ocoupy the crests of ndges The Bl
Cobre and El Plormo deposits occur n two parallel
ndges, corverging to the north, and forming the
two sides of avalley The rocks are extensvely
brecoated, especially n El Cobre

The mineralisation at Leon is believed to have
ongirated by leaching and transportation of metals
from red bed sediments or inter-tayered basalts by
basin banes Copper and siver were deposited In
structural traps and/or as a result of a strongly
reducing environment

Pnmary copper/siver mineralisation generally
occurs within the Iimestone beds, although a
significant zone of ore grade exists within the
Lecho sandstenes Basal chalcocte and bornite
are succeeded upwards in the stratigraphic
succession by chalcopyrite and associated
tennantte and finally galena, sphalerte and pyrite
Sitver appears to be mostly assocated with
tennantite

Supergene oxde and sulphide mineralisation
oceurs to around 80m depth, compnsing
malachite, azunte, digente and covelite, iron and
manganese oxides and complex, fins-gramed
mixtures of axides contaming copper, ron,
manganese, lead, ainc, arsenic and anhmony
The host rocks are strongly brecciated, tectonised
and altered
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Business review

Resource statement

Based on a review of histoncal data and the
findings and recormmendatbons of ndependent
geologcal consuttants, AGA Howe International,
Alexander commenced a comprahensive resource
defintion diamond dnlling programme over the El
Cobre and B Plomo zones n August 2005, which
continued throughout much of 2006 Dalling in the
target oxide zone was on a 50m section spacing
In Juty 2008, a JORC Code complant resource
staterment for Leon, prepared by ACA Howe, was
pubkshed Upon further rewew, addiional dniing
was decided upon to enhance the resource
categonsation and database A total of 16,238m
was complsted, ncluding 927m of large dameter
dnling for metallurgical testing, n 206 dnll holes
Subsequently, the final Leon mineral resource
statement was announced showing a total
combined in situ copper resowrce for B Cobre and
B Plomo of 6 43Mt @ 0 64% copper and 17 9g/it
siver, for contained metal of 41,100t copper and
3 7Moz siver

Feasibility Study

Dunng the year, n parafel with the resource
definiion dnling prograrnme, our main efforts have
been devoted to advancing the feasibility studly for
the Leon Copper Proyect The preparabion of the
feasibiity study s an mporiant step m determining
the economic viabilty of the project and reducing
the associated project nsks  Although our initial
optimesed schedude for compieting the feashbility
study has slipped, due to delays beyond our direct
control in the amval of the pilct plant, several
critical and notable milesiones have been passed

In order to proceed with the constructon of the
mine at Leon, the Company will have to review the
financing options This will nvolve tha consideration
of debt and/or additonal equity financing

Schematic cross section of Leon project |
\
£l Cobre El Plomo
Leach pad
Oxide ore Open ptt wall outline

|

Leon copper project JORC Code compliant resource statement '
El Cobre Deposit Tonrnes, Mt Copper, % Sikver, g/t Copper,t  Siver, Moz
Indcated Oxide Resource 225 084 2002 21,080 145
Inferred Oxide Resource 043 06 1237 2,840 017
Total Oxde Resource 267 020 1879 24,020 162
El Plomo Deposit Tonnes, Mt Copper, % Siver, g/t Copper, t Siver Moz
Indicated Oxide Resource 290 046 17 63 13,330 165
Inferred Oxide Resource 088 044 1575 3.750 043
Total Oxde Rescurce 378 045 17 20 17,020 208
Total 643 064 179 41,100 3.70

Note Copper grade cut-off of 0 20% used, totals may be subyect 10 rounding errors

Metallurgical Testwork

A thorough metallurgical testwork programme
continued dunng the vear A key component of
this was the commissioning of a solvent extraction
electro-wanning (SX-EW) pilot plant This was
designed, hired and imported from metallurgical
consultants Sociedad Terral S.A.(“Terral”) in Chile,
which also supervised the testwork The pilot plart
has a capacity of 240kg cf cathode copper per
day

As part of the leaching preparations for the pilot
plant, a trench was excavated, lned and a small
starter pit sarmpled and excavated from the top
bench of the B Cobire deposit About 450t of nun
of mine (ROM) ore was placed by an excavator on
the leach pile to a height of 4m A dnpper imgation
system for leaching was constructed Two
collection pands for the pregrant leach soluton
(PLS} and raffinate (re-cycied barren leachate)
were also bult The scope and parameters of the
testwork were desgned by Terral The electncal
raguinements for the electrowinning process were

met using exssing generators at the Leon site

The purpose of the pilot test programme was ta
undierstand better the process expenment with
cunng methods, measure and minmise reagent
consumption and measure recovery of copper
from ROM ore

Asgnificant miestone was reached with the
produchon of, what s befieved to be, the first
cathode copper plate ever produced in Argentna

Results o date have been encouragng and Teral
continues with testwork aimed at optmising the
rate of leaching within the heap

Mming Engineenng

The site location has excellent mfrastructure
Authonties have indicated that the Company can
be supplied with cheap power, and water supplies
are avalable from both underground sources and
the nearby Juramento Rver The city of Salta
provides a wide choice of enl contractors and
fabncaton workshops for mine construction
purpases

Mirung reserves have been calculated by Adam

Whesler & Assocates using the ACA Howe

resource models The pit optmisation studies |
were run using Datamine software Vanous

scenangs were nvestigated to determine the

optrrurmn pit sze for the operabon

The propased open pit mining method at Leon
has been planned to sutt infrastructure,
topography and enmvironmental constraints The
use of small equipment ts preferred for flesdixlity
and has the additonal benefit of employing more
local people with a less skilled mechanical
background and exposure 1o large mobde
equipment

The stte is ideally sutted to heap leaching and ot
waste disposal There 15 a relatvely flat area of
ground between and in close proamity to the
proposed open pits There 1s no pre-strp required
and huighly leachable, good grade ore occurs near
the surface Waste matenal can be placed ether
within the same valley or in an adjacent valley, with
minimal emaronmental impact Ore will be broken
using exprosives, then excavated in benches and
hauled to the lsach pad
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The Company has received excellent support
for its activities in Argentina at the local,

provincial and national level.

Salta Province

Key

Project Site
Regonal Arport
Town

Road

SAN SALVADOR DE JUJUY

Jujuy Province

Salta Basin
SALTA

LEON

Metan

Alexander Mining Project Claims

Alexander Minng Regional Exploration Claims

Prownncial Border
Salta Basn

Leon project site
schematic plan

B Cobre pt

Admin

Open pit outhne
Valley leach pads
Plant

Water stovage
Waste dumps

1 Copper cathodes prockiced in plot plant

2 Piot plant leached ore heap

Environmental Studies

As part of the requirement to submit a full
ervironmental Impact study to the redevant
authorties, the cormpany has undertaken the
requisite emvironmeental impact work 10 assess the
effects of a mining operation at Leon Following
these studses and based on therr findings, the
company wil adhere o its corporate
ermamnmental policy to ensure that

+  Complance with the environmental laws and
regulatons of Argentina are maintained and
wherever possible exceeded to industry best
practice

* |mpacts dentfied dunng the studies will be
minmised dunng the construction and
operation of the mine

+ The water qualty leaving the site will be sutable
for use downstream of the project area.

« The creabion of local obs and business
opportunities will be gven a high pnonty

s The disposal of wastes will be done inan
environmentally responsible manner

+ The local authonties and farming community
will be kept nformed about company actvies
through reguiar commurications

¢ Rehabiitation actmties take place dunng the
operating Ife of the mine

+ Following mine closure, the land will be
returned to a condition suitable for contired
farming actmties

Gommunity Relations

The Company’s am s to have a postive impact
on the people, cuttures and communities in which
it operates It is respectiul of local and indigenous
people, ther values, traditions, culture and the
environment The Company strves to ensure that
surrounding communities are informed of, and
where possibie, nvolved in, developments which
affect them, throughout the Iife cycle of our
operabons We undertake social rvestrment
intiatives n the areas of need where we can make
a prachcal and meaningful contnbution In
particular, we contrbute to those areas of
education and health care which are relevant to
our business actvites and those most hkely to be
sustainable once our operatrons have ceased

We acquire and use land in a way which
promotes the broadest possible consensus
amongst nterested people Moreover, we
endeavour to contnbute to the sustanable
economic development of host communmes
through procurement actmvibes and the
outsourcing of goods and senices from local
vendors where appropnate

The company has maintained good mlatonships
with all local, provincial and national government
authonties It has also enjoyed positive press
coverage as a result of the professional way tis
conductng its actmties
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Argentina

Leon Regronal Exploration

Although exploraton dunng the year was focused
on completing the evaluation dnlling and
calculating a resource estimate on the man Leon
project area, the Company continued the
investigation of its regional exploration propertes,
including the P arxt S blocks The company's large
clans area of some 145,000 hectares in the
prospectve Salta basin is designed to enhance
the odds for success in discovenng potential Leon
satelite or standalone regional copper deposits
As several prormusing targets have already been
generated that warrant further investigation, plus
ongoing active reconnaissance for more, we
believe that this programme should bear frort

A number of additonal copper discovenes were
rmade dunng the year through reconnassance
exploration Detaled surface exploration has
commenced and 15 N progress on several of these
and dnk evaluation has been completed on one, albert
that the inferred resource potential was too small

Surface mapping and sampling on the S block
has defined mineralisation occurnng in the middle
section of the brmestone, with values of up to 4 Om
at 1 71% copper and 13 42g/t siver Qutcrop s
poor and the thickness of the mineralisation needs
to be determined by drling

Exploration on the P biock has revealed
mineralisation in two old workings, separated by a
distance of 800m The mineralisation occwrs in the
Imestones and underhang sandstones One
working has a channel width of 18m at 0 99%
copper and 6 72g/t siver In the cther, a single
sample over 1 5m gave a value of 2 B4% copper
and 29 8g/t siver Surface work 1s planned to
contirue before dll evaluation commences

The Los Negros area 1S located 10km to the north-
west of the main Leon Project Here copper
mineraksation ocours in faults and fractures within
Precambnan imestones and phylites Inial rock
chip samplng collected from two zones of outcrop
gave average values of 11 18% copper and

10 6yt siver n ane outcrop area and 0 90%
copper and 3 2g/t siver in the other Surface
exploration s continuing m the area

Several copper occumences in the sandstones
below the Imestones have been located to the
south of the Leon Project area. Of these the most
mportant 1s known as Arbot Solo, 23km due
south of Leon, which consists of two anbclines
forming topographic highs, Nogal Solo n the north
and Chicar in the south Surface mapping and
trenching are n progress and results from the first
three trenches consistently gave values of
between 0 42% and 0 50% copper over widths
ranging between 17m and 32m The mapping has
ndrcated a potential mineralised stnke of greater
than 3,000m An access road for drlling 1s
curently being constructed

Rachaite Project

The Rachaite Project, n Juuy Province north-west
Argentina, covers a total area of 13,560 hectares
and consists of an altered and leached porphyntic
dacite body within a collapsed caldera

After intial mapping and surface sampling, which
encountered gold, copper, lead, zinc and
molybdenum, a 1.500m diamond core dnlling
programme of six hales was conducted Dunng
the first quarter of 20086, logging and sampling of
the sx diamond dnlt holes was completed Highly
anomalous intersechons of gold and
siver/ead/zinc were mads in this imited dnling
The indcations are that the altered systerm could
haost significant tonnages with siver/zinc/lead
mineralisabon In the central and northern parts of
the body In addiion, to the south s a north-west
to south-east trending zone of approximately
2,000m by 150m that has the potential to host
gold mineralisaton In order fully to test these
targets, more detaled surface sampling and
mapping ard additicnal diarmond dnling will be
required

Whilst holding attractve exploration potential,
gnen the considered geological nsk, the Company
has decided to solicit third party joint venture
interest The Company has made a provision n
the accounts for the costs associated with the
property, which would be reversed should a
successiul joint venture nterest or sale occur

Tnnidad Project

The Tanidad project s some 60km to the west of
the town of Susgues m Juuy Province in north-
west Argentina 1} consists of two properties
totaling 2 891 hectares to the north and north-
east of the old La Providencia siver mine Surface
mapping and sampling of the two properties were
undertaken after required approvals were granted
by the provincial government of Juuy The western
property 1s located at 6km to the north of La
Provdencia Here mapping revealed identical
Ithologres, structures and alteration on surface as
that encountered in the La Providencia
occurrence Inadditon, rock chip sampling gave
copper values of between 145 ppmand 1% On
this basts, a damoend dnlling programme was
inhiated at the year end 1o test the potental of
hosting mineralisation simiar to that at La

Prowdencia These results, and analysis thereof, 1

are pending

Significant posthon

145,000

145,000 hectares exploration claims
area In the Salta Basin

The Company’s

intensive regional copper

exploration programme
is supported by its
dominant claims position
In the prospective

Salta Basin.

1 Explorahon crew
2 Sedimentary copper mineralisation
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Sullana

PIURA

ECUADOR

MOLINETES

PERU

Chulucanas

An extensive alteration
system centred on

and covering most

of the property has
been identified in our
Molinetes gold prospect,
in Piura Province, Peru.

Key
Proect Site
Town
Road
Rever
Land over 4,000 ft
Land over 1,500 f

National Border

15 30 Kiometss

Peru

The muiing industry In Peru continues 1o grow
from its existing dominant posthion as a world class
mining country This has been due to its fabulous
mineral endowment and pragmatic government
mining and economic policies It is Latin Amenca's
largest gold producer and a significant producer of
siver, tn, copper, lead and zinc The country 1s
host 10 some of the largest and lowest cost
precious and base metals mines in the world
These include Newmont Mining's 36Moz resource
Mirera Yanacocha, the largest gold producer in
South Amenca and Antarming, the world's third
largest mine whch produces copper and 2inc
With the glecton of the new President, Alan
Garcia, In July 2006, the political and economic
uncertanties prevailing beforshand have been
significantly assuaged In general, conditons since
the election have been positve for the mining
industry However, it 1s paramount 1o nvolve local
cormmunities {ully as stakeholders in any
exploraton/mining actvty by sesking a social
licence to operate Alexander has been especially
committed to ensure this policy s adhered to and
mantained in its operations in Peru

Molinetes Property

The Molinetes property is in the Distnct of Las
Lomas, approamately 120km east of the city of
Pura, the regional caprtal of Pura Province in
north-west Peru The concession covers an area
of crca 800 hectares

An extensive alteration systern centred on and
covenng most of the Maolinetes property has
alrsady been identfied Prefiminary observations
suggest the presence of a large scale
epithermal/shear zone system with extensve vens
of gold mineralsation

The mingraksation appears 1o cover a surface area
of at least 8km? and may extend beyond the
boundanes of the Molinetes property, although the
magor proporbon of the mineralisation seems to be
within the property boundanes

The meneraisaton s distributed beneath a broad
tand of shaliow altered clays along the geological
contacts and expresses itself as a senes of
discrete high grade verns and broad dissermenated
stock works within the massive sifica aflered felsc
volcanic rocks Except for the shallow oxdised
surface minerafisation down to 20m, the gokd and
siiver mineralisation present s associated with
sulphices
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Artisanal gold processing equipment

Untd recently, there had been no previous hustory
of minng or modem exploraticn Reportedly, it s
onty since late 2004 that artisanal miners have
been working In the gereral area Local mmers ane
expioting quartz veins hosting bonanza grades
{(>16g/t goid) The warkungs ars restncted to the top
20m in crude shafts and pits It s bebeved that in
addition to the hgh grade veins, the area also hosts
a substantal low grade halo which s left unmined

The first stage of exploration waill start as soon as
possible and involve  geclogical mapping of the
area, sol and rock chip sampling and systematc
gnd diriling using both damond and reverse
crreutation methods

Sulcha Project

The property 1s located approximately 55km to the
east of the coastal town of Tniilo Between May to
July 2006 the property was tested with diamond
dnling nto the zones that had yislded hgh grade
surface rock chip assays for siver and gold

The resutts did not produce any continuous
grades that were considered probable to gve
economic tonnages  Hence, the Company's
interest In the property was relinguished after all
relevant landholder agreements and government
pemmit oblgations had been discharged

Financial Review

Dunng 2006, the Group continued to focus on
advancing the Leon project and its exploration
properties N South Armenca. Capitalised
exploration and feasibility study expenditure dunng
the year amounted to £3 6 millon, which brngs
the total capitalised expenditure to date to E5 6
milkon Expenditure totaling £610,000 has been
wnitten-off dunng 2006, relating to the Group's
Sukcha progect In Peru and certain parts of the
regional exploration programme around Leon,
where resutts did not warran! further exploration
A provsion has been made aganst expenditure,
totaling £321,000, at the Rachaite property In
Argenting, pending the outcome of joint veniure
negotations The maponty of the remaning
expenditure, totallng £4 7 mdlion at 31 December
2006, relates to the Group's Leon progect

In additon to the Group's projects, our most
significant asset 1s our strong cash posttion, which
totaled £14 0 milion at 31 Decernber 2006
Interest earmed on thes in 2006 totalled £784,000,
helping to cover part of the adminstratve costs of
the Group

Dunng the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Group made a consolidated net loss of £3 3
milon In addibon to ongong administrative costs
for the Group, this included a number of one-off

and non-cash tems  £931,000 of exploraton
costs wntten-off or provided for as set out above,
share option costs totaling £496,000 calculated in
accordance with FRS 20, a new accounting
standard for 2006, and exchange losses of
£669,000 resufting frorm the weakening of the US
doflar against Stering dunng 2006 The Group
rased equity funds in Stering n 2005, but decided
i the first half of 2006 to hold a srgnficant portor:
of cash reserves in US dollars, the currency of the
magjonty of its orgoing project expenditure

Risks

Business

The business of explonng for minerals and mining
rvolves & high degree of technical nsk In additon,
ke all businessas, the Group s exposed to a
nurmber of financial nsks The Board adopts a
prudent approach to minimise these nsks as far as
prachcable, consistent with the comorate
obyectve of the Group These nsks and the
Company's palicies are summansed below

Technucal nsks

Minng industry statistics show that only a small
proportion of the propertes that are explored are
ultimately devedoped into producing rmines
Moreover, of these, not all prowide an economic
return on capral empioyed The prospects arncd
projects presently being assessed by the Group
may not contan economically recoverable volumes
of minerals or metals The operations of the Group
may be disrupted by a vanety of nsks and hazards
wiech are beyond the control of the Group

As s commoen with all mining operations there

1s uncestainty and therefore nsk associated with
the Group's operating parameters and therefore
costs Should econormically recoverable volumes
of minerals or metals be found it cantake a
number of years from the initial phases of dnlling
and identficabon of mineralisabon until production
5 possible, dunng which time the economic
feasibility of producton may change

Substantal expenditure s required to establish
reserves, to conduct feasibility studes and to
develop the mining and processng fachites and
nirastructure Although substantal benefits may
be derved from the discovery of a signficant
rmneralised deposit, no assurance can be gven
that minerals will be discovered in sufficient
quantbes or having sufficent grade to justify
commencial operations, or that funds requered for
developrnent can be obtained on a timely bass

The economics of developing and operating mines
am affectod by many factors, nduding capial and
operatng costs, geclogical, mining and rruneral
processing, government regulations, importing
and exporting of minerals and environmental

Metal pnces

Factors beyond the control of the Group may
affect the market pace of metals mined whech n
turn rmay render operatrons and/or ore reserves
UNeconomic

Uninsured nsks

tn the courss of exploration, development and
producton of mineral properties, it s not always
possible to fully insure against some nsks Should
such liabilibes anse, they could reduce or elminate
any future profitabxlity and have a matenal acverse
effect on the Group’s results

Environmental and other regulatory requirements
The actrtes of the Group are subject to
environmental regulations A breach of such
legistation may result in the impositon of fines,
penaltes and other adverse effects on actvities

Financial

In addibon to the financial nsks set out below, the
disclosures set out n Note 13 to the Financial
Statements set out the policies and procedures
undertaken by the directors to manage the financal
nsk exposure of the Company and the Group

Gurrency exchange nsk

The Group reports its financial results in Steding,
while the markets for gold., siver and copper (and
neary all other metals) are pnncipally denominated
in US Dallars and a proportion of the Group's
costs arg incurred 0 local currencies, n parbcular
the Argentinean Peso and the Peruwvian Nuevo Sol
Accordingly, if erther of these cumencies wers to
strengthen aganst the US Dollar or Stering, this
could have a detnmental effect on the Group's
resutts or finarcial condition

Liquicity

The Group to date has relied upon shareholder
funding of its actmties Furiher exploraton and
developrnent of one or more of the Group's
propertes may be dependent upon the Group’s
ability to obtain financing through joint ventures,
equity or debt financing or other means Although
the Group has been successful in the past n
obtaining equity financing there canbe no
assurance that the Group will be able to obtan
adequate financing in the future or that the tems
of such financing will be favourable

New Business

The minng industry has enjoyed excellent market
conditions for the last few years Demand across
the board for metals and minerals has been
extracrdinary However, this masks some
fundarmental problems and challenges Namely,
mining companes have had dfficulties keeping up
supply, skiled and qualified personnel are scarce,
and salanes and wages have nsen accordingly,
the avallabiity and tirmely delivery of equipment
and consumables has been stretched, and
permitting 15 more onesous Moreover, as an
industry centred on a depleting asset, the
replerishment of ore reserves to keep up with the
world's voracious appetite for metals s becoming
increasingly difficult It s not surpnsing that the
worid's mayor mining comparues, and those of
lesser size, see mergers and acguisitions as an
easeer option than being dependent upon the
serenchpry of exploration

Although currently at the other end of the
company size scale, consistent with our growth
obyectve, Alexander mantaned a large effort in
identfying and evaluating new business
opportuniies Our pobcy remains to be actve In
several countnes to alevate political nsk, focus as
much as possibie on a metals mex of copper, gald
and siver, to mitigate pnce nsks, and at different
stages of the mining cycle to diversify project nsk
However, the prevarling mearket conditions has
meant that vendor valuabon expectatons are often
nflated and, although in depth analys:s was
undertalken on several opporturites, they did not
progress Notwithstanding, we reman confident
that with the: currently more realisbic valuations our
efforts will be more fnatful
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Directors and Advesors

1 Matthew Sutcliffe
Chairrman and CEO

Matt Suttciffe graduated from the Unversity of
Notungham i 1990 with a PhD in maning engineenng
He 15 2is0 a chartered engneer and worked s a minng
engneer N underground nickel mmes from 1990 to 1994
with Inco Limited, within ts Manitoba dmsion He also
has additonal expenence In operabng gokd and coal
mnes ganad whist working with Gencor and British
Coal For 10 ysars before founding the Compary he
worked n the Gity of London as a marng analyst and
oorporate financier specialising N the resources sector

Dumg this time he was a minng analyst at T Hoare 8 Co
head of mining at Willams de Broe and a director of
comorata finance at Evolubon Beeson Gregory (now
Evolution Secuntes) At Bvoluton Beeson Gregory he
advised a large number of public natural resources
companes as wel as amangng a number of equity
listings for junvor and mud-ber muning and ol and ges
companies on AM Whist at both Wiliams de Broe and
Evoiuton Beeson Gregory he was recogrised as one of
the ndustry pioneers for listing miring companies on AIM

2 Martin Rosser
Director of Business

Development

Martin Rosser 1s a chartered minang engineer who has 25
years' prachcal industry and financal markets expenence
since graduating with a degres in mining engineenng
from the Camborne School of Mines in 1981 Initelly he
spent five years worlang as a munng engmeer in Austraba,
both on underground and sterface gokd mines including
trme wath Weestern Mining Corporation as Shaft
Supenntendent at Contral Norserman  In 1887, he
retumed to the UK and worked as a mining analyst with
two City stockbrokers before he joined the FSA
authonsed and regulated natural resources industry
specalst firn of David Wilkamson Assoctates Umited
[DWA - now VSA Rasources Limited - VSA) n 1989 asa
founder empioyes and then executive drector Dunng his
tme with DWANVSA, unil joming Alexander n June 2005
he developed extensne workhwde minng ndustry
contacts in the course of prowiding corporate finance and
investor relatons senaces to the firm s clients seeking
exposure to Eunopean avestment nstiutons

Company Secretary

ECan

Directors
M L Sutdiffe

M L Rosser

J W Ashcroft

J S Buryan

RO Davey

GV Lews

D R Nonwood

Company Registration No
5357433

Registered Office

1st Roor, 35 Pecadlly
London W14 0DW

Urted Kingdom

3 James Ashcroft

Non-executive Director

James Ashcroft is a mining grachuate with over 40 years'
expenencs n coal and base metals operations

Mr Ashcroft s a professional engnesr n Ontano and
Chartered Engneer in the UK He was president of nco
Ltd in Ontanc He 1s & director of FNX Minng L.td,
Guyana Goldfieids Inc Hudbay Minerals Inc and Patent
Enforcement and Regulations Ltd

4 James Bunyan

Non-executive Director

James Buryan hoids an MBA from Warwick Unversity
and a BSc in Biochemistry from Henot Watt He
specalses N corporats development with ntemational
busness development across a broad range of ndusinal
and commerncial seciors workdwide  Mr Bunyan has
proven business skills in strategic businass planning,
mergers, acquesibons, disposals, turnarounds and
fundrarsing, with parbicular expenence In minng Mr
Bunyan was for five years a dector of Tiberon Minerals
Lid which developed the Nui Phao deposit n Vietnam
from an exploration concept to one of the largest Tunsten
polymetallc depossts N the world

5 Roger Davey

Non-executive Director

Roger Davey s a chartered mining engineer and a
graduate of the Camborne School of Mines, with over
thurty years expenence in the mining industry He s
presently an Asssstant Drector and the Senvor Miring
Engneer at N M Rothschad (London) n the Mining and
Metats prosect finance team, where for the last eght vears
he has had responsibiity for the assessment of the
technical nsks associated with curent and prospective
project loans  Pror to this hes expenence coverad the
financing, development and operation of both
urdsmground and surface miring operations v gold and
base metals at seror management and Drector level in
South Amenca, Afnca and the United Kingdom  This
ncludes from 1994 - 1997 being the Generd Manager
of Minorco (AngloGold) subsdianes n Argentina, where
he was responsibie for the development of the US$270m
Cemo Vanguarda gold-siver mine

Argentina Office

Hercrlo det Nore
Salta 4400

Salta Province
Argentina

Registrars
Capita Regestrars
Northern House
Woodsome Park

Fenay Bndge
Huddershield

Waest Yorkstwre HDS8 OLA

Nominated Adwviser and

Broker

Arbuthnot Secunbes Limited
Arhuthnot House

20 Ropemaker Strest,
London EC2Y 9AR

6 Gordon Lewis

Non-executive Director

Gordon Lews 15 a mining engineer with considerable
senior management and practical expenence m planning,
buidng and managng mining operations on time and on
budget in emerging market couniry locations  He
graduated from Melbourne Unversity n 1971 with a
Bachelor degres n Engineenng and then went on to take
hus Master of Engneenng at McGil Unwversity In Canada
Gordon 15 a Member of the Australasan Institute of
Mining and Metaurgy and holds a First Class Mine |
Manager's Certifcate South Austraia

His experience dso includes from 1990-95 Manager
Mining for the Fuo Tinto 90% owned PT Kelian Equatonal
Mirwng wich operated the large Kelan open pit goid
mine n Indonesia and, from 1986-90 serior muning and
commearoal postions at the world dass Bougainvile
coppar mire n Papua New Gunea. More recently he
held executve positions wath Avocet Mining ple, which
has gold mings n indonesia and Malaysia,

He 1s currently Chuef Executive Officer of Anglo Asian
Mining PLC

7 David Norwood

Non-executive Director

David Norwoaod 15 a modem hestory graduate from Kebla

College Oxford  He began his career as an FX trader with

Bankers Trust  Subsequently he worked for Duncan
Lawne and Willams de Broe arangng finance for

technology companes In 1993 he formed ndexT 1o

provide specdist advice to early stage technology

comparees  IndexIT was acaured by Beeson Gregory in

2000 and Mr Norwood janed the board and spent some

wme as CEQ  Beeson Gregory was acqured by |
Evolstion Secunties m 2002 and Mr Norwood became |
non executive drector untl 2004 Hais curently

Chaimnan of IP Group pke, an AIM quotad IP company

specalisng n commeraalisng unwversity technology

Solicitors to the Company

Norton Rose
Kernpson House
Camormie Street
Lordon EC3A 7AN

Geological Consultants

ACA Howe nternational Limated
254 High Street
Berkhamnstead
Hertfordshie HP4 1A0

Bankers
HSBC Bank pic
455 Strand
London WC2R 0AH

Auditors
PKF {UK] LLP
Farnngdon Place
20 Famngdon Road
London EC1M 3AP
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Corporate and social responsibility

The Company’s core values are

* To be a good corporate citizen,
demonstrating integnty In each business and
community n which we operate

¢ Tobe open and honest in all cur dealings,
while respecting commercial and
personal confidenality

+ To be objective, consistent and far with
all our stakeholders

« Torespect the dignity and wellbeing of all
our stakeholders and all those with whom
we are involved

* To operate professionally in a performance-
onentated culture and be commiited to
continuous Improvement

Our Stakeholders

We are committed to developing mutually
beneficial partnerships with our stakeholders
throughout the lfe cycle of our actvities and
coperations Our principal stakeholders nclude
our shareholders, employees, ther families,

and employea representatives, the
communities iIn which we operate, our business
partners and local and nattonal governments

Environmental Policy

The Company 15 aware of the potential impact
that its operations may have on the
environment 1t will ensure that all of its
actvities and operations incur the minmum
environmental impact possible

The Company intends to meet or exceed
international standards of excellence with
regard to ervironmenital matters Qur
operations and actmvties will be in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations We will
adopt and adhere to standards that are
protective of both human health and the
emaronrment For our operations we will develop
and implement closure and reclamation plans
that provide for long-term environmental
stabiity and sutable post-mining beneficial
land-uses at all relevant sites

Each employee (including contractors) will be
held accountable for ensunng that those
employees, equipment, facidihes and resources
within therr area of responsibility are managed
to comply with this policy and to mintmise
environrmental nsk

Ethical Policy

The Company 15 committed 1o comply with all
laws, regulations, standards and international
conventions which apply to our businesses
and to our relationships with our stakeholders
Where laws and regulations are non-existent
or inadequats, we will mantain the highest
reasonable standards appropriate We will

in an accurate, tirmely and venfiable manner,
consistently disclose matenal information about
the company and its performance This will be
readily understandable by appropnate
regulators our stakeholders and the public We
will endeavour to make sure that no employee
acts in a manner that would in any way
contravene these principles  The company will
take the appropnate disctplinary action
concerning any contravention

Community Policy

The Company's aim s to have a positive impact
on the people, culiures and communities mn
which it operates It will be respectful of local
and indigenous people, ther values, traditions,
culture and the environment The Company will
also strve to ensure that surrounding
communities are informed of, and where
possible, nvolved in, developments which
affect them, throughout the life cycle of our
oparations It will underiake social invesiment
intiatives 1n the areas of need where we can
make a practical and meaningful contribution

Labour Policy

The Company is commutted to upholding
fundamental human nghts and, accordingly,
we seek to ensure the implementation of far
employment practices The Company will also
commit fo creating workplaces free of
harassment and unfair discrirnnation

Health & Safety Policy

The Company is committed to complying with
all refevant occupational health and safety laws,
regulations and standards In the absence
thereof, standards reflecting best prachce will
be adopled
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Corpoarate governance

Code of best practice

The listing rules of the Financial Services
Authonty incorporate the Combined Code,
which sets out the principles of Good
Governance, and the Code of Best Practice for
listed companies The Board intends that, so far
as s relevant for a company of its sze and
stage of development, it will cormply with the
Combined Code The Board has established
appropriately constituted Audit and
Remuneration Committees with formally
delegated responsibiities

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently comprises
seven members, two executive drectors and
five non-executive directors The Board has a
wealth of both corporate finance and mining
expenence, from exploration, development and
through to production The structure of the
Board ensures that no one indradual or group
dominates the decision making process

The Board ordinarly meets ona monthly

basis providing effective leadership and overail
managernent of the Group s affars through the
schedule of matters reserved for i1s decision
This nciudes the approval of the budget and
busmess plan, major capital expenditure,
acquisitions and disposals, nsk management
policies and the approval of financial
statements All directors have access to the
achice and services of the Company s solicitors
and the Company Secratary who Is responsible
for ensuring that all Board procedures are
followed Any director may take independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense
in the furtherance of therr duties

The Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee, which meets not less
than twice a year, considers the Group's
financial reporting (ncluding accounting
policies) and internal financial controls

The Audit Committee, which comprises

Mr J Bunyan (Chairman) and Mr D Norwood,
receves reports from management and external
auditors to enable it to fulfil its responsibility for
ensurng that the financial performance of the
Group 15 properly monitored and reported on
In addition, it keeps under review the scope,
cost and results of the external audit, and the
mdependance and objectivity of the external
auditors

The Remungration Committee

The Remuneration Committes, which meets
when necessary, 1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on directors’
and senicr executives' remuneration The
commitiee compnses Mr J Ashcroft {Charman)
and Mr D Norwood  Non-executive directors’
remuneration and conditions are considered
and agreed by the Board

Financial packages for executve directors are
established by reference 1o those prevailing in
the employment market for executives of
equivalent status both in terms of level of
responsibility of the position and ther
achievernent of recognised job qualfications
and skills The Committee will also have regard
to the terms which may be required to

attract the equivalent experienced executve
to join the Board from anocther company

Internat Controls

The directors acknowledge ther responsibility
for the Cornpany's systems of internal controls
and for reviewing therr effectiveness These
internal controls are designed to safeguard the
assets of the Company and to ensure the
reliability of financial information for both internal
use and external publication Whilst the
directors acknowledge that no internal control
systern can provide absolute assurance against
matenal misstatement or loss, they have
reviewed the controls that are in place and are
taking the appropnate action to ensure that the
systems continue to develop in accordance
with the growth of the Company

Relations with Shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to
maintaining good relations with its sharehoiders
Extensive information about the Company's
activities s included in the Annual Report and
Accounts and Intenm Reports, which are sent
to all shareholders Market sensitive information
15 regularly refeased to alf shareholders
concurrently In accordance with stock
exchange rules The Annual General Meeting
provides an opporturnity for all shareholders to
communicate with and to question the Board
on any aspect of the Group's activities

The Company mantans a corporate website
where information on the Company is regularly
updated and all announcerments are posted as
they are released The Company welcomes
communication from both its pnvate and
institutional shareholders

Share dealing

The Company has adopted a share dealing
code for Directors and relevant employees

n accordance with the AlM Rules and will take
proper steps 10 ensure compliance by the
Directors and those employees
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Directors’ report

The directors present therr report and the
audited consolidated financial staternents for
the year ended 31 December 2006

Principal activities

The pnncipal actvity of the Group 15 the
exploration for, and the development of, base
and precious metals mining projects The
Group's objective 18 to become a dwersified
mid-size rmining group by a combination of the
exploration of its existing properties, which may
lead to the economic development thereof, and
the acquisition of advanced projects and
producing operations

Business Review

A raview of the business and the future
developments of the Group 1$ set out on pages
61013

Results

The Group made a consclidated net loss for
the year of £3,331,000 (2005 £1,260,000 as
restated on adoption of FRS20 ‘Share-based
payment’} The directors do not recommend
the payment of a dwdend

Financial Risk Management

The Group's approach to financial nsk
management Is addressed In the Business
Review on page 13 with additional disclosures
set out n Note 13 to the Financial Statements

Going concern

Based on a review of the Group's budgets
and cash flows, the directors are satisfied that
the Group has sufficient cash resources to
continue Its operations and to meet its
commitments for the foreseeable future

The accounts have therefore been prepared
on a going concern basis

Share capital and share options

Details of the share capital of the Company

at 31 December 2006 are set cut in Note 14 to
the financial statements Details of the share
options outstanding at 31 December 2006 are
set out In Note 16 to the financial statements

An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the
annual general meeting to grant the Directors
authonty to allot unissued shares up to an
aggregate nominal value of £6,728,733, which
is equal to approximately one half of the 1ssued
ordinary share capital of the Company

A special resolution will be proposed at the
annual general meeting to grant the directors
authority to allot unissued shares for cash
without first offering them to existing
sharehoiders, imited to an aggregate norminat
amount of £6,726,733 which s equal to
approximatety one haif of the ssued ordinary
share capital of the Company
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Directors
The directors of the Company who held office at the year-end and their beneficial interests in the shares of the Company are as follows

Shares Shares

held at held at

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

Number Number

M L Sutchffe 10,906,000 10,808,000
M L Rosser (appointed 1 August 2006) - -
J W Ashcroft - -
J S Bunyan - -
R O Davey (appointed 1 August 2006) - -
GV Lews - -
D R Norwood - -
10,906,000 10,906,000

Mr J R Hodder resigned as a director of the Company on 1 September 2006

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Messrs M Rosser and R Davey, who were appainted during the year, will retire and
Messrs M L Sutcliffe and D R Norwood will retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting, and being eligible all four offer themselves for re-election

Qther than therr service contracts, no director has a rmatenal nterest in a contract with the Company Detatls of directors’ remuneration is set out
in Note 4 to the financial statements

Durning the year, directors’ and officers’ lability insurance was maintained for directors and other officers of the Group as permitted by the
Companes Act 1985

The directors’ interests in share cptons are as follows

Options held at
31 December Exarcise pnce First date of Final date of
2006 (pence) Date of grant exercise exercise
M L Sutcliffe 1,000,000 30p 23 March 2005 23 March 2007 22 March 2015
J W Ashcroft 250 000 30p 23 March 2005 23 March 2007 22 March 2015
J S Bunyan 250 000 30p 23 March 2005 23 March 2007 22 March 2015
D R Norwood 250,000 30p 23 March 2005 23 March 2007 22 March 2015
M L Rosser 500,000 30p 31 May 2005 31 May 2007 30 May 20156
M L Rosser 250,000 30p 1 August 2006 1 August 2008 31 July 2016
GVlews 1,000,000 30p 1 July 2005 1 July 2007 30 June 2015
R O Davey 250,000 30p 1 August 2006 1 August 2008 31 Juty 2016
No options were exercised or lapsed duning this penod
Substantial shareholdings
As at 31 December 2008, the Company was aware of the following holdings of 3% or more in the Company’s Issued share caprtal
Approximate
percentage of the

Number of shares in Company's 1ssuad

Alexander Mining plc share capital'
M L Suicliffe 10,906,000 81%
JP Morgan Asset Management {UK) Limited 8,000,000 59%
Scottish Widows Investment Partnership 7,150,000 53%
SLiamone 7,144 000 53%
Hermes Investment Management Limited 6,875,000 51%
Artemnis Investment Management Limited 5,795,000 4 3%
Note 1

Based on 134,534,667 shares issued as at 31 December 2006
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Directors’ report

Payment to suppliers

The Group's policy on the payment of supplers
15 to settle the terms of the payments with those
suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction, ensure that those suppliers are
made aware of the terms of payment, and
abide by the terms of payment

At the year-end there were 30 days (2004
5 days) purchases 'n Group trade creditors

International Financial Reporting Standards
For the year ending 31 December 2007, the
Group will be required under European Unicn
law to prepare its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) Thesse
financial staterments will include comparative
information for the year ended 31 December
2006 also prepared in accordance with IFRS

The Group 18 1n the process of completing

the work for the conversion of the financial
statements to IFRS The intenm results for the
six months ending 30 June 2007 will be
prepared in accordance with IFRS and full
detaills of all adjustments to accounting policies,
together with a reconciliation of the profit

and loss account and balance sheet at

31 December 2006, will be published with

the intenm financial statements

Political and chantable contnbutions
The Group has made no political or chantable
donations in the year (2005 nil)

Annual general meeting ("AGM”)

The Notice convering the Company's AGM, to
be held on 13 June 2007, 1s set out on page 40
of this report Full details of the resolutions
proposed at that meeting may be found in

the Netice

Corporate governance statement

A report on corporate governance and
compliance with provisions of the Combined
Code 1s set outon page 17

Provision of information to auditors

In the case of each of the directors who are

directors of the company at the date when this

report1s approved

* Sofar as they are indvidually aware, there
15 NO relevant audit information of which
the company's auditors are unaware, and

= Each of the directors has taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a director
to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware of the
information

Auditors

PKF (UK) LLP have confrmed ther wilingness
to continue In office, and a resolution
concemning therr re-appointment and
remuneration will be proposed at the next
Annual General Meeting

Statement of directors’ responsibilibies
The directors are responsible for preparing the
annual report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare

financial statements for each financial year

Under that law the directors have elected to

prepare the financial statements in accordance

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Accounting Practice (United Kingdom

Accounting Standards and applicable law)

The financral statements are required to give a

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

company and the group and of the profit or loss

of the group for that penod In prepanng these

financial statements the directors are required

to

* select sutable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

* make judgments and estmates that are
reasonable and prudent,

* state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subjectto
any matenal departures disclosed and '
explained I the financial statements, |

* prepare the financial statements on the |
going concern basis unless it 1s mappropriate |
to presume that the company will continue ‘
in business

The drectors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
positon of the company and the group, and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Comparves Act
1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregulaniies

By Order of the Board

Ll

Matt Sutcliffe
Chief Executive
26 Apnl 2007
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Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Alexander Mining plc

We have audited the group and parent
company finangial statements ('the financial
statements’) of Alexander Mining ple for the
year ended 31 December 2008 which comprise
the consohdated prefit and loss account the
consolidated and company balance sheets,
the consokdated cash flow statement, the
consolidated staterment of total recogrised
gains and losses and the related notes The
financial stalements have been prepared under
the accaunting policies set out therein

This report 1s made solely to the company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to themn an
auditors” report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company and the company’s
members as a body, for our audit work for this
report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors
and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparning the
annual report and the financial staterments in
accordance with applicable law and United
Kingdom accounting standards {'United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice'} are set cut in the statement of
directors’ responsibilities

Cur responsibility i1s 1o audit the financial
statements in accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as te whether
the financial statements give a trus and farr
view and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985

We also report 10 you whether 1In our opinion
the infarmation gven in the directors’ report 1s
consistent with the financial statements The
information in the directors’ report inciudes that
specific Information presented In the business
review that 1s cross-referenced from the
business review section of the directors' report

In addition we report to you If, In our opinion,
the company has not kept proper accounting
records, If we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for
our audit, or if nformation specified by law
regarding directors’ remuneration and other
transactions 15 not disclosed

We read other informaton conianed in the
annual report and consider whether it 1s
consistent with the audited financial
staterments The other information compnses
only the charman's statement, the directors’
report and the business review We consider
the imphcations far our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstaternents or
matenal Inconsistencies wilth the financial
statements Qur responsibilities do not extend
to any other nformation

Basts of audit opinion

Woe conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audit sncludes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements It also
Includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgments made by the directors
In the preparation of the financial statements,
and of whether the accounting policies ara
approprate to the group's and company's
circumstances consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

Wa planned and perfoermed our audit so as to
obtain all the Information and explanations we
considered necessary (n order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free
from matenal messtatement, whether caused by
fraud or other trregulanty or error In forming our
opinion we alsc evatuated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of nfermation in the financial
statements

Opinien

I our option

» the financial statements give a true and far
view, in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
of the state of the group’s and the parent
company's affars as at 31 December 2006
and of the group's loss for the year then ended,

* the financial sta.ements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1885, and

* the information given in the directors’ report
15 consistent with the financial statements

/K/{&K)uﬁ

PKF (UK)LLP
Registered Audrtors
London, UK

27 Apnl 2007
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Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The financial staternents have been prepared
under the histoncal cost convention and In
accordance with apphicable accounting
standards

The pnncipal accounting policies of the
Company are set out below

Basis of consolidation

The Company was incorporated on 8 February
2005 On 22 March 2005 the Company
acquired Alexander Gold Group Limited
{"AGGL", a company ncorporated i the Bntish
Virgin Islands on 8 December 2003, by way of a
share for share exchange This acquisition has
been consolidated in accordance with the
merger accounting principles set outn
Financial Reporting Standard 6 and Schedule
4(A) to the Compantes Act 1985

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investment iIn AGGL 1s stated at the nominal
value of the shares issued In consideration

for that company As permitted by the
Companes Act 1985, no premium has been
recorded on the shares issued in consideration
On consolidation, the difference between the
value of the shares Issued and received has
been debited directly to the merger reserve

Merger accounting requires consolidated
financial statements to be presented as If the
companies had been combined throughout the
current and previous periods and at the
provious balance sheet dates Accordingly,
the consolidated financial statements include
the results and cash flows of AGGL. from

1 January 2005 The comparative penod 1s
presented as pro-forma information because
this penod commences prior to the date of
formation of the Company

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company’s other
subsidiary undertakings using the acquisition
method of accounting Under this method the
results of 1he acquired entity are ingluded in the
consolidated profit and loss account from the
date of acquisition

The Group's share of the profits less losses
of associates 1s included n the consolidated
profit and loss account and its interest in their
net assets 1s ncluded in nvestments in the
consohdated balance sheet

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets represent costs
associated with mineral expleration, which are
capitalised on a project-by-project basis,
pending deterrmination of the feasibility of the
project Costs incured include appropnate
technical and administrative expenses but not
general overheads If an exploration proect s
successful, the retated expenditures will be
transferved to mining assets and amortised over
the esttmated Iife of the commercial ore
reserves on a unit of production basis Where a
project 1s relinquished, abandoned, or 1s
considered to be of no further commercial value
to the Group, the related costs are written off

The recoverability of these deferred exploration
costs 1s dependent upon the discovery of
economically recoverable ore reserves, the
ability of the Group to obtain necessary
permitting and financing to complete the
development of cre reserves and future
profitable production or proceeds from the
dispostbion thereof

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Depreciation 1s provided to wnte off the cost
less the estimated residual valus of tangible
fixed assets by equal instalments over their
estmated useful economic lives as follows

Office equipment and furniture 3years
Leasehold improverments 3 years
Motor vehicles Jyears
Investments

Investments are recorded at cost less amounts
written off

Functional and foreign currencies

The Company 1s considered to have a Sterling
functional currency Transactions in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habilities denorminated in foreign
currencies are translated using the rates

of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
Any gain or foss ansing from a charge in
exchange rates subsequent to the date of the
fransaction 1s included as an exchange gain
orloss In the profit and loss account

Any exchange differences ansing from the
retranslation of the opening net iInvestment
in subsidiary undertakings are taken directly
1o reserves

Liquid resources

Ligud resources consist of cument assets that
are disposable by the Group without curtading
or disrupting its business and are reacity
convertible into a known amount of cash at
close to thar carrying amount They consist of
short term deposits realisable at more than 24
hours notice

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation 1s recognised on all tirming
differences where transactions or events that
grve the Group an obligation to pay mare tax in
the future, or a nght {o pay less tax in the future,
have occurred by the balance sheet date
Deferred tax 15 measured using rates of tax that
have been enacied or substanively enacted by
the balance sheet date

Deferred tax assets are only recogrised when
they arise from biming differences where ther
recoverability 1s regarded as being probable
Deferred tax balances are not discounted

Operating leases
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit
and loss account over the term of the lease

Share based payments

Equity settled share-based payments are
measured at far value at the date of grant and
expensed on a straight-lne basis over the
vesting perad, based on an estimate of shares
that will eventually vest




2 Alexander Mining plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

Consolidated profit and loss account

For the year ended 31 December 2000

Pro-forma

year ended

Yearended 31 December

31 December 2005

2006 restated

Notes £'000 £'000

Administratve expenses (2,495) {1,889)

Exploration and development expenses {931) -

Operating loss 3 (3,426) (1,889)

Provision against investment In Associate - 73

Interest recevable 784 708

Interest payable and simdar charges 5 (669) (6)

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 2 (3,311) {1,260)

Tax on joss on ordinary actvities 6 (20) -

Loss on ordinary activiies after taxabon and retained for the penod (3,331) {1,260)
Bastic and diluted loss per share {pence) 7 {2 48)p (1 08)p

All amounts relate to continuing operations
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Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Pro-forma

year ended

Yearended 31 December

31 December 2005

2006 restated

Notes £'000 £°000

Loss for the perod (3,331) (1.280)

Exchangs loss on foreign currency netinvestments

47 -

Total recogmised loss for the penod

(3,378) {1,260)
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Consolidated reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Pro-forma

year ended

Yearended 31 Decernber

31 December 2005

2006 restated

Notes £'000 £'000

Loss for the period (3,331) (1,260)
Exchange loss on foreign currency net investments (47 -
Share option costs recegnised In reserves 16 496 337
Share capital subscribed — Alexander Miring pic - 18,516
Share capital subscrbed ~ Alexander Gold Group Limited - 3.506
Movement in shareholders' funds (2,882) 21,099
Shareholders’ funds at start of penod 21,597 498
Shareholders’ funds at end of penod 18,715 21597
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2006

As at
Asat 31 December
31 December 2005
2006 restated
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets 8 4,716 2,253
Tangible fixed assets 9 54 73
Investments 10 100 100
4,870 2,426
Current assets
Debtors 11 222 539
Cash at bank and in hand 2,184 1,982
Short term bank deposits 11,814 17,018
14,220 19,539
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 12 (3759) (368}
Net current assets 13,845 19,171
Total assets less current habilities 2 18,715 21,597
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 14 13,453 13453
Share premium account 15 11,850 11,850
Merger reserve 15 (2,487) (2,487)
Share option reserve 15 833 337
Profit and loss account 15 (4,934) (1,556}
Shareholders’ funds 18,715 21,597

These financial statements wene approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 26 April 2007 and were signed on therr behalf by

M L Suichffe
Director C
’
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 Decernber 2006

As at
Asat 31 December
31 December 2005
2006 restated
Notes £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangsble fixed assets 8 3 54
Tangble fixed assets 9 27 52
Investments 10 6,887 6,887
6,945 6,893
Current assets
Debtors — due within one year 11 193 639
Debtors — due after more than one year 11 3,245 _
Cash at bank and in hand 1,687 1,813
Short terrn bank deposits 11,676 17,018
16,801 19,470
Crediters amounts falling due within one year 12 {171} {1.671)
Net current assets 16,630 17,799
Total assets less current habilities 23,575 24,792
Capital and reserves
Called up share capitat 14 13,453 13,453
Share prermum account 15 11,850 11,850
Share ophion reserve 15 833 337
Profit and loss account 15 (2,561} (848}
Shareholders’ funds 23,575 24,792

These financial staternents were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed forissue on 26 Aprl 2007 and were signed on ther behalf by

M L Sutchffe
Diractor \( g\
rs
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2006

Pro-forma
Year ended year ended
31 December 31 Decernber

2006 2005
Notes £'000 £°000

Net cash outflow from operating activities 20 (1,574) (1,7586)
Returns on investment and servicing of finance
Interest recerved 887 494
Interest pad and similar charges - 6)
Net cash inflow from returns on investment and servicing of finance 887 488
Taxation 3) -
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (24) (107)
Purchase of ntangible fixed assets (3.572) {1,940}
Investment In associated undertaking - (32)
Acquisitton of other Investments - (100}
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment {3,596) {2.179)
Management of iquid resources
Transfer from/(to) short term bank deposis 4,580 (16,498)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) before financing 294 (19 945)
Financing
Issue of shares by Alexander Mining plc - 20,000
Issue of shares by Alexander Gold Group Limited - 3,371
Share issue cosis - (1.483)
Net cash inflow from financing - 21,888

Increase in cash 21 294 1,943
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

1 Adoption of FRS20 - Share-based payment

The Group has adopted Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 20 ‘Share-based Payment’ dunng the year The adapuion of this standard constitutes a
change in accounting policy Therefore, the impact has been reflected as & prior year adjustmentin accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 3

The standard requires that where shares or nghts to shares are granted to third parties, mcluding employees, a charge should be recogmsed n the
profit and loss account based on the far value of the shares at the date the grant of shares or nght to shares s made

All share options have been granted by the parent company, Alexander Mining plc The impact of the adoption of FRS 20 has been the same in both

the consolidated and company only profit and loss account and balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the adoption of FRS 20 has increased operating loss and retaned foss for the year by £496,000, and

increased kiss per share by 0 37p

The effect of the adoption of FRS 20 on prior year consolidated comparatves for the year ended 31 December 2005 1s as follows

As previously Impact of Asrestated
reported FRS 20
£'000 £°000 £'000
Operating loss {1.552) (337) (1.889)
Loss for the year {923} {337) (1,260}
Loss per share (pence} (0 79)p {0 29)p {1 08)p

There 15 no effect on the net assets of the Company at 31 Decermber 2005

2 Analysis of segmental information

All the Group’s actmities are related to exploration for base and precious metals mining projects in Argentina and Peru There was no Group turnover in

the year (2005 ni}

The Group
31 December 31 December
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Loss after tax
UK {1,997) {848)
Bntish Virgin Isiands (372) {322)
Argentna (621) (78)
Peru (341) (14)
Total (3,331) (1,260)
Net assets
UK 13,511 19,328
Bntish Virgin Islands 421 98
Argentina 4,361 1,860
Peru 422 3t
Total 18,715 21,597
3 Operating loss
Operating loss 1s stated afier charging
The Group
31 December 31 December
2006 2005
£000 2’000
Depreciation 42 36
Operating lease rentals - land and buldings 82 4B
Share option costs 496 337
Exploration costs provided for and wnitten-off 931 _
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

4 Directors and employees

Staff costs dunng the penod were as follows

The Group The Company

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2005 2006 2005

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Directors’ emoluments 418 290 418 273
Other staff wages and salanes 523 317 320 254
Social secunty costs 103 37 54 37
Share based payments 496 337 496 337
1,540 964 1,288 801

Included within group staff costs above are £215,000 of other staff wages and salanes, which have been capitalised withun exploration costs for the

year ended 31 December 2006 (31 December 2005 £70,000)

The Group does not contnbute towards pension schemes either in the UK or overseas

The average number of employees (including executive directors} dunng the penod was

The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Technucal 24 8 5 3
Administration 5 4 4 3
29 12 9 6
Directors’ remuneraton is set out below
Annual Fees COther Total
salary benefits
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Year ended 31 December 2006
M L Sutclffe 130 - 15 145
J R Hodder {resigned 1 Sep 06) 1 72 - 83
M L Rosser (appainted 1 Aug 06) 38 - - as
R O Davey {appointed 1 Aug 06} - 10 - 10
GVlews a3 12 - 65
J S Bunyan - 37 - 37
D R Norwood - 20 - 20
JW Ashcroft - 20 - 20
232 171 15 418
Year ended 31 Dacember 2005
M L Sutcliffe 101 - 15 116
J R Hodder 112 - - 112
GV Lews 11 - - 1
J S Bunyan - 27 - 27
D R Norwood - 12 - 12
J W Ashcroft - 12 - 12
224 51 15 290
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5 Interest payable and similar charges

The Group
31 December 31 December
2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Interest payable - 6
Exchange differences on foreign currency cash balances 669 -
669 6

6 Tax onloss on ordinary activities

The current tax charge for the penod differs from the credit resulting from the loss before tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK
The diferences are explained below

The Group

31 December

31 December 2005

2006 restated

£'000 £'000
Loss on ordinary actwvities before tax (3,311) {1,260)
Current tax at 30% (2003 30%) {993) {378)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes’ 285 240
Qualifying depreciation in excess of capital allowances 3 2
Unrelieved tax losses ansing in the penod 705 136
Minimum income tax charge ansing in overseas subsidiary® (20 -
Tax on loss on ordinary achivities (20} —

'‘Restated on adoption of FRS 20 'Share-based payment’

ZArgentinean income tax charge based on net asset value

The group has unused trading tax losses of £2,582,000 (31 Decernber 2005 £557,000) gmng nse to delerred tax assets of £775,000 (31 December
2005 £167.000), which have not been recognised in the accounts becauss there is insufficient ewdence of the timing of suitable future taxable
profits against which they can be recoverad

7 Loss pershare

The calculation of loss per share 1s based on a loss of £3,331,000 for the year ended 31 December 2006 (31 Decernber 2005 loss of £1,260,000

restated on adoption of FRS 20 *Share-based payment’) and the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue in the year to 31 December 2006 of
134,534,667 (31 December 2005 117,127,000} There 1s no difference batween the diuted loss per share and the loss per share presented
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

8 intangible fixed assets

The Group

Deferred
exploration
costs
£'000

Cost and net book value
As at 1 January 2006 2,253
Additions 3,394
Wntten-cif* 610Q)
Prowision? (321)
As at 31 December 2006 4,716

‘Costs incurred to date at the Group's Sulcha preject were written-off dunng the year together with some of the costs associated with the Leon
Regional exploration programme

‘A provision has been made against costs associated with the Group's Rachaite project pending the outcome of joint venture negotiations and
subsequent further exploration results

The Company
Deferred
exploration
costs
£000
Cost and net book value
As at 1 January 2006 54
Additions 154
Whntten-off' (15)
Prowision? (12)
Transfer to subsidiary? {150)
As at 31 December 2006 31

'‘Deferred exploration costs at the Group’s Sulcha project were wrtten-off during the year

A provision has been made against costs associated with the Group's Rachaite project pending the outcome of jont venture negotiations and
subsequent further exploration results

*Deferred exploration costs at the Group’s Leon project have been recharged to Alexander Gold Group Limsted under an imter-company service
agreement dunng the year
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9 Tangtble fixed assets

The Group
Leasehold Office Motor Total
improvernants equIpment vehicles
and furniture
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 January 2006 35 48 26 108
Additions - 7 16 23
As at 31 December 2006 35 55 42 132
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2008 (11) {(16) <) (36}
Charged inyear (12) {18) (12) 42)
As at 31 December 2006 {23} (34) 21) {78)
Net book value
As at 31 December 2006 12 21 21 54
As at 31 December 2005 24 a2 17 73
The Company
Leasehold Office Total
improvements equipment
and furniture
£'000 £°000 £ 000
Cost
As at 1 January 2006 35 43 78
Additions - 1 1
As at 31 December 2006 35 44 79
Depreciation
Ag at 1 January 2006 (1) {15) {26)
Charged in year (12) {14) {26)
As at 31 December 2006 {23) (29) {52)
Net book value
As at 31 December 2006 12 15 27
As at 31 December 2006 24 28 52
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2006

10 Investments

The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Degember
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Subsidiary undertakings (a) - - 6,787 6,787
Other fixed asset mvestments (b) 100 100 100 100
Investment in associated undertaking (c} - - - -
100 100 6,887 6.887

{a) Company subsidiary undertakings

As at 31 December 2006, the Group owned interests in the following subsidiary undertakings, which are included i the conselidated financial
statements

Name Holding Business Actwity Country of Incorporation
Alexander Gold Group Limited' 100% Exploration Brtish Virgin Islands
Molinetes (BVI) Limited 100% Investment holding Brtish Virgin Islands

CIA Minera Molinetes SAC? 100% Exploration Peru

ClA Minera Sulcha SAC? 100% Exploration Peru

'operates a branch in Argentina

Zowned by Alexander Gold Group Limited

{b) Other fixed asset investments

Dunng 2005, the Company acquired an interest in 1,165,000 ordinary shares of AU$0 20 each in Manana Resources Limited, a company registerad
n New South Wales, Australia, for a total cost of £99,957 The Company’s iInvestment in Manana Resources Limited represents 3 30% of the issued
share capital of that company

{c) Investment in associated undertaking .
During the year the Group sold its 45% interest in the ordinary shares of an associate, TMAP Investment Limited (“TMAPI"), for US$1, to the other ,
shareholders of TMAPI At 1 January 2008 the cost of the investment in TMAP| had been fully provided Between 1 January 2006 and the date of

disposal TMAPI operated on a break even basis

11 Debtors
The Group The Company

31 December 31 December 31December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000

Amounts due within one year
Other debtors 44 133 28 133
Other taxes and social secunty 14 121 7 116
Prepayments and accrued income 164 263 158 252
Amounts due from associated undertaking - 22 - -
Armounts due trom subsidiary comparves - - - 138
222 539 193 639

Amounts due after more than one year
Amounts due from subsidiary companies - - 3,245 - |
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12, Creditors amounts falling due within one year

The Group The Company
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2005 2006 2005
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade creditors 191 26 65 26
Other creditors 35 8 15 7
Other taxes and social secunty 28 16 18 16
Accruals and deferred income 104 318 73 107
Corporation tax 17 - - -
Amounts due to subsidiary companies - - - 1,515
375 368 17 1,671

13 Financial instruments

The Board of Directors determines, as required, the degree to which it s appropnate to use financial nstrurments, commaodity contracts or other
hedging contracts or technigques to metigate financial nsks The man nsks for which such instruments may be appropnate are interest rate nsk,
Iguichty nsk and foreign currency nsk, each of which is discussed below There 1s no percerved credit nsk as the Group has no trade recevables and
any investments are made in hawd secunittes with counterparties that have a sound credit rating All non-routine transactions require board approval

At 31 Becember 2006 the Group s financial instruments compnse trade debtors, trade creditors cash and short term deposits As permitted by
FRS13, “Dervatives and Other Financial Instruments®, short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from all financial instrument disclosures
cther than currency exposure disclosure

Denvative financial instruments

The Group toes not use hedge accounting for any transactions During the year ended 31 December 2006 the Group entered into short term over
the counter denvative instruments classed as Dual Gurrency Deposits (DCD's) Sterling deposits were Invested on a short term basis, at an enhanced
interest rate, with either US Dollars or Sterling receved on matunty, depending on the then exchange rate compared to a pre-determined cornversion
rate DCD’s are used to acquire US Dollars required for operating expenditure No other dervative financial instruments were used by the Group
during the year There were no denvative instruments outstanding at 31 December 2006

Currency nsk

The Group reports its financial results in Sterling, while the markets for gold, silver and copper (and nearly all other metals) are prncipalty
denominated in US Doltars and a proportion of the Group’s costs are incurred in local currencies, in particular the Argentinean Peso and the Peruvian
Nueva Sol Accordingly, if either of these currencies were to strengthen against the US Dollar or Sterling, this could have a detnmenta! effect on the
Group's results or financial conditon

The Group cannct predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future operating results and there can be no assurance that exchange rate
fluctuations will not have a material adverse effect on its business, operating results or financial condiion

The Group maintains its principal cash deposits in Sterling and US Dollars The Group has potential currency exposures in respect of items
denominated in foreign cumencies compnsing

» Transachonal exposure in respect of operating costs and capitat expenditure incurred in currencies other than the functionat currency The Group
transacts a number of contracts in US Dollars and, accordingly, holds a proportion of its reserves in US Dollars

« Translational exposure In respect of investments in overseas operations which have functional currencies other than Stering Any exchange gains
and losses from these structural currency differences will be laken to the Statement of Total Recogrised Gains and Losses

The table below shows the extent to which Group companies have monetary assets and liabiities in currencies other than Sterling

31 December 31 December

2006 2005
£000 £'000
US Dollars 5,953 1,539
Euros 19 -
Argentinean Pesos 124 51
Penman Soles - 3

6,096 1,593
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13 Financial instruments (continued)

Liquidity nsk

The Group to date has relied upon shareholder funding of its actvities Further exploration and development of one or more of the Group's properties

may be dependent upon the Group's ability to obtan financing through joint ventures, equity or debt financing or other means, and although the
Group has bean successiul In the past in obtaining equity financing there can be no assurance that the Group will be able to obtan adequate

financing i the future or that the terms of such financing will be favourable

Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets

At 31 Decermnber 2006 the Group has Sterling and US dollar denominated cash balances and short term deposits which attract interest as follows

Deposit Interest

£'000 rate

US dollar deposits 5314 53%
GBP deposits 6,500 51%

Faur values of financial assets and habihties

The Group has performed a review of the financial assets and liabiities as at 31 Decernber 2006 and has concluded that the far value of those assets

and labilrties 1s not matenally different to book value

14 Share capital

371 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2006 2006 2005 2005
Number £'000 Number £'000
Authonsed
Ordinary shares of 10p each 240,000,000 24,000 240,000,000 24,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10p each 134,534,667 13,453 134,534,667 13,453

During the year no ordinary shares were 1ssued During the year the Company 1ssued 1,875,000 options to acqure ordinary shares at an exercise

pnce of 20 30 Detalls of share options outstanding at 31 December 2006 are set cut in Note 16

15 Reserves
The Group
Share Merger  Share option Profit and
premium reserve reserve  loss account
£'000 £°000 £°000 £'000
At 1 January 2006 as previously reported 11,850 {2.487) - {1.219)
Pnor year adjustment - - 337 (337}
At 1 January 2006 as restated 11,850 (2,487) a3z {1.558)
Retaned loss for peniod - - - (3.331)
Exchange loss on foreign currency net investments - - - 47}
Share opton costs recogrused in reserves - - 496 -
At 31 December 2006 11,850 (2,487) 833 {4,934)

The prior year adjustment represents the impact of the adoption of FRS 20 ‘Share-based Payment', details of which are set out in Nots 1

The merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares 1ssued by the Company and the total value of both share capital

and share premium of Alexander Gold Group Limited, which was acquired by way of a share for share exchange on 22 March 2005
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15 Reserves (continued)

The Company
Share Share option Profit and
premium reserve loss account
£'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2006 as previcusly reported 11,850 - {511)
Prior year adjustment - 337 {337)
At 1 January 2006 as restated 11,850 337 {848)
Retained loss for period - - {1,713)
Share option costs recognised In reserves - 496 -
At 31 December 2006 11,850 833 {2,561)

The Company has taken advantage of the exernption permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and has not presented 1ts own profit and

loss account

i6 Share based payments

The Group operates an Executive Share Option Plan, under which directors, senior executives and consultants have been granted ophions to
subscnbe for ordinary shares All options are share settled The number and werghted average exercise pnces of share options are as follows

31 December 2006 31 December 2005
Weighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

EXEercISe pnee oploNs  EXercIse price options

Qutstanding at the beginning of the penod 30p 9,183,333 30p -
Granted dunng the penod 30p 1,875,000 30p 9,183,333
QOutstanding at the end of the penod 30p 11,058,333 30p 9 183,333
Exercisable at the end of the perniod 30p 500,000 3Cp 500,000

All share options outstanding at 31 December 2006 have an exercise price of £0 30 (2005 £0 30) and a weighted average contractual ife of
8 23 years {2005 8 93 years) To date no share options have been cancelled, exercised or expired There are no market based vesting conditions

attaching to any share options outstanding at 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2006 the total number of options over ordinary shares outstanding was as follows

Exercise penod Number Exercise

price
23 March 2007 - 22 March 2015 6,100,000 £030
22 March 2005 - 22 March 2008 500,000 £0 30
26 May 2007 - 25 May 2015 250,000 £0 30
31 May 2007 - 30 May 2015 500,000 £0 30
6 June 2007 - 5 Juns 2015 333,333 £0 30
1 July 2007 - 30 June 2015 1,000,000 £O 30
29 September 2007 ~ 28 September 2015 500,000 £030
1 August 2008 — 31 July 2016 500,000 £030
21 September 2008 - 20 September 2016 1,275,000 £030
1 December 2008 - 30 November 2016 100,000 £030

11,058,333

The Group has applied FRS 20 to all share options granted after 7 November 2002 and unvested at 1 January 2006 Accordingly, 500,000 share

options that vested on 22 March 2005 are excluded from the valuation exercise

The farr value of services receved i return for share options granted 15 measured by reference to the fair value of the share options granted Thus
estimate 1s based on a Black-Scholes model which is considered most appropnate considenng the effects of the vesting conditions, expected

exarcise penod and the payment of dvdends by the Company
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16 Share based payments (continued}

The following inputs were used in the calculation of the fair value of the share cptions granted

Date of Grant Mar 05 May 05 Jun 05 Jul 05 Sep 06 Aug 06 Sep 06 Dec 06
Far value (p) 12 4p 6ip 7 8p 75p 95p 94p 73p 72p
Share price (p} 300p 20 8p 23 3p 22 8p 25 8p 24 5p 22 0p 22 5p
Exercise prce (p} 300p 300p 30 0p 300p 300p 300p 300p 300p
Expected volatiity’ 40 0% 40 0% 40 0% 40 0% 40 0% 43 8% 41 1% 383%
Option Iife 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years 5years 5years 5 years 5 years
Expected dividends 0 0% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
Risk-free rate of return 4 00% 425% 450% 4 50% 4 50% 4 50% 475% 5 00%
Note 1

Volatlity for options granted in 2005 was estmated based on the volatdity of similar comparves in the mining industry in the penod from January 2003

to September 2005

Volatiity for options granted in 2006 was estimated based on the Company's dally closing share price dunng the 12 months prior to the issue of the

share option

17 Auditors’' remuneration

The: Group

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

£'000 £'000

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audnt of the Company's financial statements 20 20
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates in respect of

The auditing of accounts of associates of the Company pursuant to legislation 11 10

Other services relating to taxation 9 19

Services relating to corporate finance transactions - 40

Services relating to information technology 2 -

Ali other services 6 1

48 90

18 Commitments

Annual commitments for the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land and buldings
31 December 31 December

2006 2005
£'000 £'000
Operating leases which expire
Within one year 17 14
Betwean two and five years 65 42
82 56
In addition, the Group has entered into a number of agreernents in respect of exploration projects In Argentina and Peru under which payments falt
due as follows
Payments falling due Option Exploration Total
payments commitment
Us$'000 us$'000 Us$'000
Within one year 376 252 628
Between two and five ysars 664 - 664
1,040 252 1,292

Under these agreements the Group eamns an equity interest in the project under certan milestone payments However, the Group does not have any
obligation to make payments under these agreements and can withdraw from these projects without any further ongoing obligations at any time
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19 Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabities at 31 December 2006 or 31 December 2005

20 Net cash outfiow from operating activities

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

£'000 £'000
Operating loss {3,426) (1,889)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 42 36
Decrease/{increase} n debtors 210 (289)
Increase in creditors 172 54
Non-cash expendiiure 497 342
Intangible fixed assets written-off or provided for 931 -
Net cash outflow from operating activities 1,574 (1,756)

21.Reconcihation of net cash flow to movements in net funds
Foreign

As at Cash currency As at

31 December fiows translaton 31 December

2005 differences 2006

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Cash at bank and in hand 1,982 204 (92) 2,184
Short term bank deposits 17,018 {4,580) (624) 11,814
Total 19,000 {4,286) {716} 13,998
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual General
Meeting of Alexander Mining plc will be beld at
the Holiday Inn London-Mayfarr, 3 Berkeley
Street, London, W1J 8NE on 13 June 2007 at
10am for the following purposes

Ordinary Business

To consider and, If thought fit, pass the
following Resolutions which will be proposed as
Ordinary Resolutions

Resolution 1
THAT the Directors’ Report and Accounts for
the year ended 31 December 20086, together
with the Auditor's repart thereon, be recerved
and adopted

Resolution 2

To re-elect Dr M L Sutchffe, who retires by
rotation in accordance with Article 93 of the
Company's Articles of Assoctation and who,
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, as
a Director

Resolution 3

To re-elect Mr D R Norwood, who retires by
rotation In accordance with Article 93 of the
Company s Articles of Association and who,
being elgible, offers imself for re-election, as
aDirector

Resolution 4

To re-elect Mr M L Rosser who was appointed
duning the year and retires in accordance with
Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and who, being eligible, offers
humself for re-election as a Director

Resolution 5

To re-elect Mr R O Davey, who was apponted
during the year and retires in accordance with
Article 88 of the Company’s Articles of
Association and who, being eligible, offers
rumself for re-election, as a Director

Resolution 6

THAT PKF (UK} LLP be re-apponted as
auditors of the Company from the conclusion of
this meeting until the conclusion of the next
general mesting at which accounts are lad
before the shareholders in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1985 and thexr
remuneration be fixed by the Board

Spectal Business

To consider and, if thought fit, pass the
following resolutions, which. in the case of
Resolution 7, will be proposed as an Ordinary
Resolution and in the case of Resolution 8, will
be proposed as a Special Resolution

Resolution 7
The: following resolution will be proposed as an
Ordinary Resolution

“THAT, i substitution for all existing authorities,
the Directors be and they are hereby generally
and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes
of Section 80 of the Comparies Act 1985 (“the
Act”) to exercise all the powers of the Company
to allot relevant secunties (within the meaning of
the said section B0} up to an aggregate norminal
armount of £6,726,733 provided that thrs
authonty shall expire at the earter of the
conclus:on of the next Annual General Meeting
of the Company and fifteen months from the
date of the passing of this resolution, unless
previously renewed vaned or revoked by the
Company in general mesting, (save that the
Company may before such expiry make an offer
or agreement which would or might require
relevant secunties to be allotted after such
axpiry, and the Directors may allot relevant
secuntes in pursuance of such an offer or
agreement as if the authonty conferred hereby
had not expired)”

Resolution 8
The following resolution will be proposed as a
Specmal Resolution

“THAT, in substitution for all existing authonties,
the Directors be and they are hersby
empowered pursuant to and in accordance
with Section 85 of the Companies Act 1985, to
allot equity secunties (within the meaning of
Section 94(2) of the Act) for cash, as if Section
89(1) of the said Act did not apply to any such
allotment, PROVIDED THAT this power shall be
limited to

a) the allotment of equity securities In
connection with a nghts issue, open offer or
any other pre-emptive offer to holders of
ordinary shares or holders of any other class
of equity secunties, in accordance with the
nghts attached to such class, where the
equity secunties respectively attnbutable to
the nterests of such persons on a fixed
record date are proportionate (as nearly as
rmay be) to the respective numbers of equity
secunties held by them or are ctherwisa
allotted in accordance with the nghts
attaching to such equity secunties (subject
to such exclusions or other arrangements as
the Directors consider necessary or
expedent to deal with any fractional
entittements, record dates or iegal or
practcal problems ansing in connection with
the taws of, or the requirements of any
regulatory body or stock exchange in any
terntory), and

) the allotment (otherwisa than pursuant to
sub-paragraph (a) above} of equity secunties
up 10 an aggregate norminal value of
£6,726,733,

provided that this authonty shall expire al the
earlier of the conclusion of the 2008 annual
generat meeting of the Company and 15
months from the date of this resolution (save
that the Company may before such expiry, or
the expiry of any renewal of the authonty, make
an offer or agreement which would or might
require equity secunties to be allotted after such
expury and the Direciors may allot equrty
securifies pursuant to any such offer or
agreement as i the power granted by this
resolubion had not expired)”

By order of the Board
E Camr

Company Secretary
26 April 2007




Alexander Mining plc
Annual Report and Accounts 2006

4

Notes to the Notice of Annual
General Mesting

1 Amember of the Company entitled to attend
and vote at this meeting Is entitled to appomnt
one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll
to vote on his or her behalf A proxy nead not
also be a member Cormpletion and return of
a Form of Proxy will not preclude a member
from attending and voting at the meebing
should the member so decide

2 To be valid, the Form of Proxy must be
completed and returned so as to reach the
Company's Registrars, Capita Registrars at
Telford Road, Breester, OX26 4LD not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for
the Annual General Meeting

3 The Company, pursuant to resolution 41(1)
of the Uncertified Secunties Regulations
2001, specifies that onty those shareholders
registered in the register of members of the
Company at 10am on 11 June 2007 be
entitied to attend and vote at the Annual
General Mesting (and for the purpose of
determining the number of votes a member
may cast)

4 The following documents will be available for
inspection during normal business hours at
the Company's registered office up until the
date of the Anrual General Meeting and at
the place of the mesting from 30 minutes
before the start of the meeting on 13 June
2007 untl the end of the meeting,

) the Regster of the interests of the
Directors and ther families in the capital
of the Company,

t} & copy of the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company and

i) the contracts of service of the Direclors

with the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings

Designed and produced by Carr Kamasa Design

Printed by Beacon Press

Explanatory notes to the business of the
Annual General Meeting

Ordinary Business

Resolution 1

The Board 15 requered to present to the meeting
the financial staterments, and the reports of the
Directors and the Auditors, for the period ended
31 December 2006

Resolutions 2tc 5

Resoclutions 2 o 5 deal with the elect:on of
Directors under the requirements of the Artcles
of Association Details of the Directors are
shown on page 19 of the Annual Report

Article 93 of the Company’s Articles of
Association requires one-third of the Directors
to retire by rotation at each Annual General
Meeting The following Dwectors are retinng
by retation and are proposed by the Board for
re-election

Mr M L Sutchffe
Mr D R Norwood

Articie 88 of the Company’s Articles of
Association requires any Director appainted by
the Beard to relire at the next Annual General
Meeting The following Directors are retinng in
accordance with Articie 88 and are proposed
by the Board for election

Mr M L Rosser
Mr R O Davey

Resclution 6

This resolution proposes the re-appointment of
PKF (UK) LLP as the auditors of the Company
and, in accordance with standard practice,
gves authonty to the Board to determine their
remuneration

The paper s manufactured from elemental chlonne free

pulp and produced from fully sustainable sources

Special Business 1
Resolution 7 |
This Resolution, which gives Directors the

authonty to aflot shares, will be proposed as an

Ordinary Resolution

Section 80 of the Companies Act 1985 only
permits Directors 10 allot unissued secunties if
authonsed to do so by the shareholders in
general meeting The Board proposes that the
Directors be granted such authonty Passing
thes resolution will provide the Directors with
sufficient flexibility to act in the best interests of
shareholders should a beneficial opportunity to
Issue new shares anse

The authonty of the Directors has been kmited

1o the aflotment of shares up to an aggregate

norminal amount of £6,726,733 which 1s equal

to approximately one half of the 1ssued ordinary

share capital of the Comparny The Directors’

authonty will expire at the earler of the

conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in

2008 or 15 months form the date of the passing

of this resolution I
|

Resolution 8

This resolution, which gves directors the power
to dis-apply pre-emption nghts, will be
proposed as a special resolution

The Board seeks to retain the authonty, within
certain Iimits and expinng at the earlier of the
conclusion of the 2008 Annual General Mesting
and 15 months from the date of this resclution
to allot unissued securibes for cash without first
afferng them to existing shareholders in
proportion {0 ther existing holdings

First, if the Board considers 1t to ben the
interests of the Company to make a nghts
issue, there could still be legal, regulatory or
practical reasons why it rught not always be
possible to 1Issue new shares to some
shareholders, particularly those resident
overseas Fractional entitiements may also
make a stnctly pro rata issue impractical
Paragraph (a} of Resolution 8 permits the Board
to make appropriate arrangements o deal with
such difficulties

Secondly, there could also be circumstances
where the Board considers it in the best
interests of the Company to 1ssue shares to
persons other than shareholders for cash,
without first offenng them to existing
shareholders Resolution 8 gives the Board that
authonty but rmits the authonty to the allotment
of shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£6,726,733
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